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1. Do preferences for the three research areas to be grouped together under one proposal for 5.2B apply to all the other tasks?
Research Topic Areas in the PON-14-309 manual state if proposals must address the RD&D needs of all of the areas outlined.  Research Topic Area 5.2b “Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience” is the only research topic area that requires proposals address the RD&D needs of all the areas described.  
2. Deadlines have been extended for previous PONs. What might trigger that, and when might notice be given for extensions?
An extension for the deadline to submit proposals is unlikely. If there is an extension, it will be posted as an addendum to PON-14-309 on the Energy Commission’s website at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#PON-14-309. 
3. In the presentation it says that match will count for +5 points, but in solicitation it says match will count for +10 points.
An addendum has been released that states match will count for 5 points.
4. How long is the funding duration?
Funding duration information can be found in Section 1, Part F. Key Activities Schedule of the PON-14-309 manual (Page 8). The schedule lists the anticipated agreement end date as March 31, 2019. EPIC funding allows up to 4 years to complete a research project. However, we anticipate project schedules will vary between 2 to 4 years depending on the needs of the research. Projects ending after March 31, 2019 will fail administrative screening and will not be eligible to receive funding (see Screening Criteria 7).  
5. Is there any mechanism to receive preliminary feedback regarding suitability for funding of a proposed project prior to submitting a full application?
No, the review process does not provide preliminary feedback to applicants.


6. Is the application open to Jet Propulsion Laboratory (JPL) scientists? JPL is managed by Caltech under contract with NASA.
It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II of PON-14-309. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding.
In general, this solicitation is open to all entities and individuals with the exception of publicly-owned utilities, per Section II, Part A, Number 1 of the PON-14-309 manual (Page 11).
7. What are the requirements for an industry such as Siemens versus an academic institute (University or a National Lab) taking the lead on a project funded through this PON?
The EPIC Terms and Conditions specify the requirements for Prime and Subcontractor recipient relationships. EPIC Terms and Conditions are available at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms.
8. Are there any restrictions on where in US the lead organization is located (Outside California)?
There are no restrictions on organization location. Non-California business entities that conduct intrastate business in California are required to register with the California Secretary of State and be in good standing in order to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission as stated in Section II, Part A, Number 3 of the PON-14-309 manual (Page 11).   
However, projects are scored on the degree to which they benefit California ratepayers and the degree to which EPIC funds are spent in California (see Scoring Criteria 3 and 6).
9. The PON has the words "Phase I" in the title - does this imply there will be a related Phase II in the near future? What are future phases anticipated to cover?
A Phase II PON is anticipated. However, the Energy Commission cannot release information regarding the specifics of this future funding opportunity.  For updates, you can subscribe to the Opportunity ListServ on the right hand side of the EPIC webpage (located at http://energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html) to receive notifications when new funding opportunities are released.
10. Could you provide a listing of “interested bidders” to help identify potential collaborators?
A list of attendees at the December 2nd Pre-Application Workshop has been posted to the PON-14-309 website at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#PON-14-309.  
11. Could you provide an example for the requirement that each match letter “provide a strategy for replacing the [match] funds if they are significantly reduced or lost”?
Examples of strategies for replacing matching funding if it is significantly reduced or lost include:
i. Company will borrow the funds from its bank.
ii. Work with management to determine a replacement source of match funds and strategy going forward.
iii. Seek to replace them through cuts to other research and engineering projects, or seeking project-specific outside capital investment.  
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12. What is an IOU balancing area?
“Balancing authority area,” as defined in Public Utilities Code section 399.12 (c), is “the collection of generation, transmission, and loads within the metered boundaries of the area within which the balancing authority maintains the electrical load-resource balance.” There is a map on the Energy Commission website that shows the balancing areas, comprising the one covered by the California Independent System Operator, which includes IOU (PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E) distribution in the state, found here: http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/balancing_authority.html. 
California’s Electric Investor-Owned Utility (IOU) map can be found here: http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/CA_Electric_IOU.pdf. 
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[bookmark: _Toc405792931]Funding Initiative S5.2: Research on Sensitive Species and Habitats to Inform Renewable Energy Planning and Deployment
Research Topic Area: Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience
13. Will this solicitation consider species other than birds and bats?
Applications under Funding Initiative 5.2b must include birds and bats in the set of species analyzed. An addendum has been released that clarifies other species may also be assessed.
14. Is the commission interested in funding innovative tools such as genomics for identification of populations?
Statistical methods including meta-analysis should be the primary approach. Additional techniques such as genomics would be acceptable to complement the primary approach as long as they contribute to the basic objectives of the topic: improved understanding of the causes and magnitude of species fatalities from renewable energy development and operation, the success of mitigation options, or the significance of fatalities on population viability. Applications that propose to exclusively use tools such as genomics would not be responsive to the intent of this topic. 
15. Is one comprehensive proposal preferred or would smaller projects receive favorable consideration?
Our preference would be for a single project, but smaller projects for a subset of tasks will be considered.
16. The project “Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience” is to analyze fatalities and/or habitat loss from construction and O&M of renewable energy facilities. One of the speakers said that the goal was to look at all renewable projects in CA; however, that is not clearly stated in the solicitation.  Are you looking for projects that deal with all facilities or just some?
It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II of PON-14-309. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding.
In general, the goal of this research topic area 5.2b is to have a comprehensive assessment on the interactions of birds, bats, and (potentially) other species with renewable energy facilities. Not every facility needs to be looked at, but an adequate sample size is needed  to reach general conclusions. The goal is to conduct a comprehensive analysis across a large number of facilities.
17. Substantial actions to reduce wildlife impacts were implemented at some renewable energy projects recently, and some actions are ongoing.  Some follow-up field research would contribute greatly toward assessing the effectiveness of these actions.  Additionally, assessment of the viability of special-status species affected by renewable energy projects would benefit from some follow-up field research where population data have already been collected, but where drought conditions may have contributed to large changes in the population that a viability study should take into account.  The challenge is that the impact of the drought remains largely unknown, but these impacts can be learned starting this spring.    I would like to know whether EPIC would fund some limited follow-up field research as part of a proposed study?
It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II of PON-14-309. The Energy Commission give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding.
In general, fieldwork to determine impacts of renewable energy facilities and the effectiveness of mitigation actions is acceptable under this topic where previous data collection is insufficient to achieve the objectives of this topic. However, the goal is to conduct a comprehensive analysis across a large number of facilities to draw general conclusions. An application that exclusively proposes to conduct fieldwork at one or a few sites without analyzing comparable existing data from a large set of other facilities would not be responsive to the intent of this topic.
18. Could you clarify which technologies (solar, wind and/or other?) are intended to be studied in the “large set of renewable energy projects” described under Funding Initiative S5.2 area b?
Ideally, at least solar and wind technologies would be included in this assessment. Geothermal technology could be included in an application, but we recognize that the number of geothermal facilities is relatively small.
[bookmark: _Toc405792932]Funding Initiative S5.3: Develop Analytical Tools and Technologies to Reduce Energy Stresses on Aquatic Resources Water and Improve Water-Energy Management
Research Topic Area: Improved Hydrological Forecasting for Hydropower Generation: Understanding Meteorological Processes and Snowpack Data Collection
19. Are you open to seeing linkages between snowpack outcomes and performance/variability in hydropower operations? If changes in precipitation or snowpack can constrain hydropower operations because of effects on biological resources, is this appropriate to include as linkage?
This solicitation only covers meteorological/hydrological processes including snowpack measurements and streamflow forecasting for hydropower generation. The effect of biological factors (e.g., effect of vegetation on streamflow forecasting) is not of high importance.  It could be part of the proposals as long as the proposals cover the main research issues listed in the PON.
20. I would like to apply WRF-Chem with SNICAR snow model to investigate aerosol effects on rain and snow in Sierra Neveda. I and my team members will develop a coupled aerosol-meteorology-snowpack model for operational forecast of stream flow for hydropower generation. Could you please tell me if this topic is relevant to the solicitation?
It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II of PON-14-309. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding.
The project description on page 15 of the PON clearly indicates that this project must improve data collection of snowpack levels in remote areas located in high elevation.  Pure numerical modeling studies are not covered in our call for proposals.
21. Is the total funding of $400,000 annual funding or for the duration of the entire project from July 1, 2015 to March 31, 2019?
For this research topic area, the total funding of $400,000 is for the duration of the entire project.

Research Topic Area: Water Conserving Hybrid Power Plant Cooling: Phase I
22. Would the commission primarily be interested in funding evolutionary developments of known technologies or would it encourage proof-of-concept R&D activities for out-of-box ideas (e.g., a new low-cost, high-efficiency heat exchanger architecture for indirect dry cooling of steam with zero target water consumption)?
The Energy Commission is primarily interested in funding pilot scale projects that could enter the market place in the near future.  For this reason, the PON focuses on evolutionary developments of known technologies, but proof of concept technologies tested in realistic pilot scale studies are acceptable.
23. There is an ARPA-E solicitation for hybrid dry cooling out right now that is going on in conjunction with this solicitation.  Would you allow us to use EPIC funds to count as matching funds for the ARPA-E solicitation?
In general, the Energy Commission does not object to the use of its funds as match for federal awards. In fact, we have another solicitation out, PON-14-308, a federal cost share solicitation designed to align with the ARPA-E solicitation, DE-FOA-0001197: Advanced Research in Dry-Cooling. It is important to note that PON-14-308 and PON-14-309 cannot be applied as match simultaneously. However, it is incumbent on the applicant to determine whether they can use Energy Commission funds as match for another solicitation, depending on the requirements of that particular entity and solicitation. Keep in mind that the Energy Commission’s own funds cannot be used as match for another Energy Commission solicitation.   
24. As long as a proposal meets overall program goals, can we assume a solution will be classified under “Other dry cooling technologies?” and be acceptable to submit?
As long as the technology is ready for pilot testing, as required in the PON, this person/group can submit a proposal.  Note that pilot testing involves testing in realistic settings such as next to an actual power plant. Proprietary information must not be included in the application, but there must be enough technical information and, perhaps, references to technical/scientific article to allow the reviewers to evaluate the technical merits of the proposal.

[bookmark: _Toc405792933]Funding Initiative S5.4: Develop Analytical Tools and Technologies to Plan for and Minimize the Impacts of Climate Change on the Electricity System
Research Topic Area: Long-Term Energy Scenarios for California and Their Environmental Consequences
25. How many applicants are expected to be funded under this initiative?
Since there is no minimum funding amount, we could fund multiple projects.  For this reason, we cannot be sure how many projects will be funded.
26. The PON’s title is "Long Term Energy Scenarios for California and Their Environmental Consequences" while the description of the PON Funding initiative S5.4 is to "develop analytical tools and technologies to plan for and minimize the impacts of climate change on the electricity system".  These seem to be focused on different things - developing scenarios and delivering results vs. developing tools and technology exploration; or environmental consequences vs. impacts of climate change.  Clearly there is overlap in these topics, and in effect, perhaps "all of the above" are on the table. Please provide further guidance as to the key focus topics of interest, e.g., to deliver a tool for policymakers or to develop and describe scenario results? Would the development of an analysis tool be considered responsive to the PON?
The title of the Funding Initiative S5.4 is very broad.  We have three specific Research Topic Areas under S5.4.  The description of research needs under the Research Topic Area “a” is what the applicants should use to prepare their applications. The main objective is to “develop scenarios and modeling capabilities for the electricity sector as well as the interactions and trade-offs with other components of the energy system including transportation and natural gas in the WECC region.”  Please check the references to determine the type of research of interest under this Research Topic Area.






Research Topic Area: Real-World Characterization of the Urban Heat Island Effect: Scoping Study
27. Can we get in writing the additional requirements mentioned today such as characterization of terrain?
There are no additional requirements but the following information is offered to provide further background and suggestions:
Among the challenges to characterization of Urban Heat Islands is that, in prior empirical studies, there was often insufficient characterization of crucial descriptive data pertaining to, e.g., terrain roughness, topography, factors related to land cover and percentage of impervious surfaces. Also, studies based on remote sensing (e.g., satellite) data explore the temperature of solid surfaces (e.g., roofs of buildings), rather than air temperature near ground-level (e.g., “screen-level” temperature at 2 meters) (Jin 2012); and Urban Heat Islands described by surface temperatures are associated with different trends and intensities than their near ground-level counterparts (US EPA 2008). Fortunately, recent advances in low-cost, high-resolution portable monitoring equipment will allow in-depth characterization of specific urban heat islands in California (e.g., Cassano 2014).
A recent modeling study (Georgescu et al 2014) suggests that cool cities can substantially reduce ambient temperatures, partially mitigating the expected increase of ambient temperatures from climate change.  However, there are known limitations on models simulating urban canopies. Thus, empirical studies are also being conducted to better characterize the spatial and temporal distribution of ambient temperatures in cities taking into account surface characteristics and other factors that explain these distributions (Stewart and Oke 2012, Brandsma and Wolters 2012, Meir et al 2012, Vant-Hull et al 2014). 
Brandsma, D. and T. Wolters (2012). Measurement and Statistical Modeling of the Urban Heat Island of the City of Utrecht (the Netherlands). Journal of Applied Meteorology and Climatology, 51: 6, 1041-1060. Doi: 10.1175/JAMC-D-11-0206.1
Cassano, J. J. (2014). Weather Bike: A Bicycle-Based Weather Station for Observing Local Temperature Variations. Bulletin of the American Meteorological Society, 95: 2, 205-209. Doi: 10.1175/BAMS-D-13-00044.1
Georgescu, M. et al (2014). Urban adaptation can roll back warming of emerging megapolitan regions. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 111:8, 2909-2914. Doi: 10.1073/pnas.1322280111
Jin, M. S. (2012). Developing an Index to Measure Urban Heat Island Effect Using Satellite Land Skin Temperature and Land Cover Observations. Journal of Climate, 25: 18, 6193-6201. Doi: 10.1175/JCLI-D-11-00509.1 
Meir, T. et al. (2013). Forecasting the New York City Urban Heat Island and Sea Breeze during Extreme Heat Events. Weather and Forecasting, 28: 6, 1460-1477. Doi: 10.1175/WAF-D-13-00012.1
Stewart, I. D. and T. R. Oke (2012). Local Climate Zones for Urban Temperature Studies. Bulletin of the American Meteorological Society, 93: 12, 1879-1900. Doi: 10.1175/BAMS-D-11-00019.1
US EPA (2008). Reducing Urban Heat Islands: Compendium of Strategies. http://www.epa.gov/heatisland/resources/compendium.htm
Vant-Hull, B. L., M. Karimi, and R. Khanbilvardi (2014). Fine Scale Mapping of the Manhattan Heat Island for Health Impacts. 94th American Meteorological Society Annual Meeting, February  2-6, 2014, Atlanta, Georgia.
28. In the pre-bid meeting, CEC staff mentioned that commitment letters are required only for S5.4 - Real-world characterization of the Urban Heat Island Effect: Scoping Study. This is not noted in the PON or Att 11 documents. What types of commitment letters are required for this research topic area? 
Per Attachment 11: “A commitment letter commits an entity or individual to providing the service or funding described in the letter. A support letter details an entity or individual’s support for the project.” Section III, Part C, Number 11 is found on page 27 of the PON manual and lists the differences and requirements for commitment and support letters in regards to all research topic areas of PON-14-309.
The Research Topic Area S5.4 Real-world characterization of the Urban Heat Island Effect: Scoping Study does not require commitment letters.  Rather, the PON manual clearly states on page 20: “Local and/or regional partnerships are required for this research topic area. Support letters from each partner must be included in the proposal (see Section III, Part C, Number 11 for instructions). 
29. For heat island research topic and others can you work within a county (i.e. LA county) that includes both municipal and IOU service areas? Potential local/regional partners may govern areas that include both IOU and muni electric service territories. Can the study region include both IOU and muni electric service territories, or must it be restricted to an IOU electric service territory?
Yes, it is fine to work within a county or study region that includes both municipal and IOU electric service territories, though the applicant cannot be a publicly owned utility.		
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30. In the pre-bid meeting, CEC staff mentioned that the scoring of the benefits section (scoring criteria 3. Impacts and Benefits for California IOU Ratepayers) will be weighted more on the qualitative than quantitative benefits estimates. We’ve compared the PON-14-309 requirements, Att 4 Narrative headers and scoring criteria to that provided in previous PONs and do not see a difference in the requirements or scoring criteria for the benefits section. Please provide clarification regarding the benefits score weighting.
The PON-14-309 manual outlines the scoring of applications submitted under this PON.  Additionally, an addendum has been released that clarifies the Impacts and Benefits to California Ratepayers scoring criteria in Attachment 4, Project Narrative Form.
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31. [bookmark: _Ref405377760]Can you please specify, for each of the funding initiatives and research topic areas, what types of commitment letters are required?
In general, pilot testing/demonstration commitment letters are only required for those research topic areas that include pilot testing or demonstrations.  When commitment letters are required, funding initiative research topic area descriptions state as such. Section III, Part C, Number 11 of the PON-14-309 manual and Attachment 11 define what type of a commitment letter should be included in the application based on the type of research performed under the research topic area.   
For this PON-14-309, an addendum has been released to specify that commitment letters are required for the following Research Topic Areas: “Emerging Technologies to Avoid Fatal Interactions of Birds and Bats with Energy Facilities,” “Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience,” and “Water Conserving Hybrid Power Plant Cooling: Phase I.”   
32. Criteria 11 of the application screening process specifies that, in addition to one or more support letters, a pilot testing/demonstration commitment letter is required. Are pilot testing/demonstration commitment letters required for all projects proposed under this PON or just those with pilot testing or demonstrations? Request this criteria be revised to state that commitment letters, if applicable, are to be included.
In general, pilot testing/demonstration commitment letters are only required for those research topic areas that include pilot testing or demonstrations.  When commitment letters are required, funding initiative research topic area descriptions state as such. Section III, Part C, Number 11 of the PON-14-309 manual and Attachment 11 define what type of a commitment letter should be included in the application based on the type of research performed under the research topic area.   
For this PON-14-309, an addendum has been released to specify that commitment letters are required for the following Research Topic Areas: “Emerging Technologies to Avoid Fatal Interactions of Birds and Bats with Energy Facilities,” “Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience,” and “Water Conserving Hybrid Power Plant Cooling: Phase I.”   


33. Please confirm that letters of commitment are required by project applicants.
In general, pilot testing/demonstration commitment letters are only required for those research topic areas that include pilot testing or demonstrations.  When commitment letters are required, funding initiative research topic area descriptions state as such. Section III, Part C, Number 11 of the PON-14-309 manual and Attachment 11 define what type of a commitment letter should be included in the application based on the type of research performed under the research topic area.   
For this PON-14-309, an addendum has been released to specify that commitment letters are required for the following Research Topic Areas: “Emerging Technologies to Avoid Fatal Interactions of Birds and Bats with Energy Facilities,” “Renewable Energy Impacts: Learning from Real-World Experience,” and “Water Conserving Hybrid Power Plant Cooling: Phase I.”   
